Independent Auditor's report

To the Members of Rajasthan Sun Technique Enevgy Private Limited

Report on the asudit of the finaneial statements

Opinion

o Wehave audited the accompanying fiuancial statements of Rajasthan Sun Techafyue

Bnergy Privale Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
Mareh 33, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (inelnding Other Comprehensive
Eneome), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, inclnding a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory inlormation.

Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given (o us, the aforesaid finaneial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the matmer so required and give o irue and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepled in india, of the stale of
alfalrs of the Company as at Mareh 41, 2019 and total comprehensive loss (coinprising
of loss and other comprehensive inconie), changes in equity and its eash flows for the
vear then ended,

Basis for Opinion

We condacted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(:0) of the Act, Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further
deseribed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section ol our reporl, We are independent of the Company in accordance wilh Lhe Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our andil of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled oar other ethical
responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Bthics, We
believe that the audit evidenee we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis {or our opinion,

Material Uncertainty related to going concern

We draw altention to note 5 to the fnancial statements with respeet to continiing
defaoltin repayment of outstanding dues to Lenders, the Company's ability to repay the
future instalments and other obligations through its own cash flows. Further, the
Company has incurred a net loss of Rs. 148,518 lakhs during the vear ended March 41,
2019 and, as of that date, the eurrvent liabilitics exceed its current assels by Rs. 137,021
lakhs and the Company is dependent on the financial assistance from Reliance Power
Limited, its ultimate parvent Company for shortfall of funds in meeting its obligations,
These events and conditions cast significant uncertainly on the Company’s ability to
continte as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note . (1) 16 the financial statements which deseribes the
impairment assessment pecdormid by the Company in aceordanee with Indian
Accounling Standagds 36 "Impairment of Assets” 1o arvive af value in nse of itg Properly
Plant and Equipment (PPL) amounting to Rs. 119,061 lakhs (net of provision for
impairment amounting to ks 141,900 lakhs). The determination of the vialue in use
involves assumptions including gencration of power, terminal value and exchan g rie
which reguires significant managemenlt judgement. Our opirion is yiol modified in
respect of this matter,

Other Information

O,

The Company’s Board of Divectors i responsible for the olther information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director's repart, but does not
melude the financial statements and our auditor’s report theveon.

Ouir opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our andit of the financial statements, our responsthility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsgistenl with the financia) statements or our knowledge obiained in the
audit or otherwise appenrs to be malerially misstated. 16, based on e work we lave
perforined, we conelude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
financial statcments

7.

The Company's Board of Directors s vesponsible for the matters stated in seetion
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash Bows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally aceepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under seetion 133 of the Aet This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting vecords in accordanee with the provigions of the Act for
safegnarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting {rauds and
other irregularities; seleetion and application of appropriate aceounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal finaneial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuraey and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give it true and fair view and are free from materia) misstatement, whether due to fraud
OF eIT0T.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continuc as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern hasis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also ros pongible for
oversecing the Company’s financial reporting process,
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Aunditor’s responsibilities for the sudit of the financial staleinenks

9. Our objeetives are to oblaio ressonable assmance aboul whether the financial
statemienty as o whaole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fravd or
error, and o jsste ma oudilors repert that inclades our opiion, Reasonable assurance
is a high fovel ol assurance, bul is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordimee with SAs will always deteet o imaterial misstatoment when it exists.
Misslatements cas arise from frand or error and wre considered material if, individually
orin the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecled 1o infhsence e economie
dectsions of users {aken on the basis of these finaneial slatements,

10, As parl of an audit in aceordanee with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and
mainlain professional seeplicism throughout the audil, We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due Lo fraud or ervor, design and perforn andit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidenee that is suffivient and appropriate to provide o
basis for onr opinion. The rigk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is bgher than Jor one resulting from error, as frand may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepreseulations, or the override of
futernal conlyol,

»  Obtain an nndevstanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order 1o design
awdit procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances under Section 143(3){1)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal fipancial controls with veference Lo financia)
stitenients in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 1he reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s vse of the going concern bagis
of accounting and, based on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertanty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are vequired to draw atlention in our sudiltor’s report to the
related diselosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conchusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our anditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may canse the Company 1o cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Dwvaiuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial stalements,
meluding the diselosures, and whether the finaneial statements represent the
underlying transactions and evenls in a manner that achioves fair presentation,
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o We conununivate with thoese charged with governanee regarding, among olther malters,
the planned seope and ming of the sudit and sgnificont audit findings, including any
sigmficant defiviencies in internal control that we entify during our audit,

12 Wealso provide those eharged with governance with o statement thit we bave
complied with eefevant ethical requirements vegarding independence, snd to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
theught to bear on onr independence, and where applicable, related safognards,

Report on other legal and regnlatory requirements

3 As required By the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issuvd Iy
the Cenbral Govermment of India in teruis of sub-seetion {11) of section 143 of the Acl,
we give In the Annexure B a statement on the malters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable,

4. Asreguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report thal:

{(n} We have souglt and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for Lhe purposes of our audit,

() In our opinion, proper books of secount as required by law have been kept by the
Compnny w0 tar as itappears from our examination of those books. -

(¢) The Balanee Shect, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
conprehensive ineome), the Statement of Changoes in Equity and Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting,
Standards specificd under Seetion 133 of the Act.

{¢) On the basis of the writien representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2} of the Act.

(I} "The matior described above in paragraphs 4 and 5 above, in our opinjon, may
4 : ; \
have significant effect on the functioning of the Company.

{8) With respeet 1o the adequacy of the internal finaneial controls with respeet to the
Enancial statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to owr separate Report in “Annexure A%

(h} With respeet to the other matters to be ineluded in the Auditor's Report in
sccordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
orr opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us;

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer Note 6 to the financial statements;

&
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The Company has made provision, as required under the applicalle Taw or
avcounting standards, for material foresesable losses, if any, on long-terms
contracts inchiding devivative contracts:

it There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Lducation and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended Magels
43, 2019,

iv. The reporting on disclosures relaling 1o Specified Bank Notes is niot applicable
to the Company for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019,

For Price Waterhonse
Firmm Reglstration Number: 0128
Chartered Aceounlints

Piyush dalandhara

Partner

Meiabership Number: 122351

Place: Mumbai
Dale: June 7, 2019

g R Y R R




Annesure A lo Independent Audilor's Reporl

Referred Lo in paeagraph 14(g) of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of
Rajasthan Sun Technique Toergy Private Limited on the foaneial statements for the vimr endod
March 31, 2010

Page 1 of s
Report oo the Internal Financial Controls with refercitee to financial statements under
Clanse (i) of Sub-scetion 3 of Section 143 of the Act

3. We have audited the isternal financial controls with reference to financial stateiments of Rajasilan
Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited (“the Company™ as of March 51, 2019 in confunetion with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company fur the vear ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibitity for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is vesponsible for establishing and maintaining interial finamcial controls
based on the internal control with respeet to financial statements criterta estulslished Iy the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidanee Note on Audit of
Interpal Pinaneiad Controls Over Financial Reporting issucd by the Institile of Charlered Accountants
of Indin (1CAI). These responsibilities inelude the design, implementation and mainlenance of
adegoate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the oxderly and
efficient conduct of its business, mcliding ndherence 1o Corn pany’s policies, the safeguarding of ia
assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the aceuracy and completeness of the
aceounting records, and the timely preparation of relinble financial information, as required under the
Ack,

Aunditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with veference
to hnancial statements based on onr audit. We conducted our audit in accordanee with the Guidanee
Note on Audit of Internad Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 1430103 of the Act to the extent
applicable to an andit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of intesnal financial
controls and hoth issued by the 1CAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assuranee alsout
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Qur audil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
Ainancial controls system with relerence to financial statements and their operating effectiveness, Our
audir of inlernal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financiad controls with reference o Financial slatements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testiop and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal contyol based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Hicdgement, including the assessment of the rigks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error,

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal finaneial controls system with reference to financial
statemaoents.

L LS
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Meaniug of Internal Finaneial Conlvols with reference to financial stalvments

6. A Company's internal finaneial controls with reference to financial statemenls is o provess designed to
provide reasonable assurance regaiding the reliability of linanciul reporting and the preparation of
flnancial statements for extemal purposes in aceordarnce with generally ducepled accounting
prineiples. A Company's interval financisl conliols with reference to finaneial stniements inclndes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 1o the maintenance of recogds that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and falrly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the sssels of the Company; (2) provide
reagonable assorance that bansietions are recorded as necessary 1o permil preparation of financial
statements in accordance with gencrally aceepted accounting principles, and Mat receipts and
expenditures of the Company ave being made only in zecordanee with authorisations of man agement
and direetors of the Compuny; and (2) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Comnpany's assits that could have
material effect on the financial staterents.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference 1o financial statements

7. Because of the inherent Bmitations of internal finaneial controls with veference to financial statemends,
eluding the possibility of collusion ov impraper management overvide of controls, material
nusstaiements due 1o error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial statements way become
inadequate becaunse of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may doteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate interual financial controls
system with reference to finincial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at Mareh 31, 2019, based on the internal control with
respect to financial statements criteria established by the Company cousidering the essential
components of internal cantrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Tnternal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Acconntants of India.

For I'rice Waterbouse
Firin Reglstration Number: o020
Chartered Accountants

Piyush Jalandhara
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: June 07, 2019 Membership Number 122951
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Avnexure B o Independent Audilor's Repoet

Referved 1o in paagrapl 23 of the Independent Anditors Report of oven date Lo the members of
Rajasthan Snp Teehnigue Boorgy Private Limited on the Ind AS {insneinl atalements as of and for the Ve
ended Marceh a1, 2009

i () The Company is msintaining proper records show ng (ll paotienlars, meluding quantitative

details snd sitnation, of fized nsgets,

{b) The fixed assots of the Conipany have been physieally vetified by the Management during the yeay

()

i,

iv,

V.

Vi,

vii, (&)

(b}

and po material diserepancies have heen noticed on sueh verification, In our opinion, the
frequeney of verification is reasonabla.

The title deeds of hutovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3.1 on Property, plant und
equipment to the finaneial statements, are held in the name of the Com pany.

The physieal vevification of inventory have been conducted ab reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year, The discrepancies noticed ou physical verification of inventory as
compared 10 book records were nol material,

The Company has not granted any loans, seevved or unsecured, 10 companics, fims, Limiled
Lisbibty Partnerships or other parties coveced in the register maimained under Section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clanse 33§}, (1H)Xa), G5} and (i} e) of the smd Order ore not

applicable to the Compmiy,

The Company has not granted any loany or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or
security to the putties covered under Section 185 and 186, Therefore, the provisions of Clause
40iv) of the said Order e not apphicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposils from the public within the meaning of Seclions v,
74, 75 andd 76 of the Act and the Rules feamed there under to the extent notified.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is reguired to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respeet of its products,
We have hroadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the preseribed
accounts and records bave been made and maintained, We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respeet of provident fund and income tax, though there has been a slight delay
in a few cases and is regular in depositing undisputed statntory dues including professional tax,
goods and service tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities,

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of Lhe Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-lax, service-tax, duty of customs, and duty
of excise or value added tax or goods and service tax which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute,

e R R
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vill.  According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
ghven Lo ug, exeept Tor borvowings from banks (refer thie below) a grepating R, 4,026 Lakhs, as
diseribed below, the Company has not detaulted in repayment of loans or borrowin 55 10 any :
financial institotion or bank or Government or dues 10 debenture holders as a1 the bitlance sheet
date. Alsa yefer note 5 to the Gnaucial statements for the year ended Mareh @1, 2010.

CRapees 1 Laldig

Name Period of default ™ Amount of Payinent
default ag on | subseguent to
March 31, yiear énd ujro
N SO &1 " S une 07, 2019
Astat Development From Jamary 7, 2019
| Bank SRR I U P
rincip From January 25, 2010 Sarn
S im Banke bvepwyment | SR ,
Nederlandse Principal From January 7, 2019 1,197 B
Financierings- repayment
Maatschapplj Voor
Ontwilkelingslanden
NVEMO) S
Nederlandse Principal and | I'rony Felwuary 6, 2o1g
Financierings- interost
Muatschappij Voor repayment
Ontwikkelinggianden
EAAGON. . .
ix, The Company hag not raised any money by way of initial publie oifer, firther public offer

{including debl instruments) and no term loans were raised during the year. Accord ngly, the
provision of clause 9(ix) of the order are not applicable to the Company,

X. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried owd in
accordance with the generally accepled auditing praetices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across a ny instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company hy its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

xi, The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applieable to the
Company,

X, As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to i, the

provisions ol Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xiti. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not §
required to constitite an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Acl, and aceordingly, to this
extent, the provisions of Clause 3(xiti) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly eonvertible debentures during the year under review, Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company, :
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KV, The Company has not entered into urty non éagh traneactions with its directors or PUFSHNS
connectad with him, Accordingly, the provigions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable 1o
the Company.

xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered wider Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Aceerdingly, the provisions of Clawse 5(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.
For Price Waterhouse -
FFirm Registration NMunbes 201zl
Chartered Accountants
Piyushh Salandhara
Place; Mumbai Parlner
Dates June 7, 2019 Membership Number: 122351




R

Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Balance Shoeet ay at March 31, 2018

Particulars
ASSETS

Non-current assots
Froperly, plant and agoipment
Capitsf work-in-progress
Olher Inangible assels
Finangial assets
Derivative Instrumeants
Loans
Olher nron-current assets
Non Current tax assels (net)

Current assels
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loars
Oiher inancial assels
Oihar current assels

Total Agsets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital

Other gquily
instrument entirely equity in nature
Reserves and surplus

Liabilities
Non-current liahitities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Other financial liabiities
Frovisions
Other non-current liabilities

Current Habilities
Financial hiabilities
Trade Payables

() Total outstanding due of micro and small enterprises

(i) Total cutstanding due of other than (iy above
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other current liabilities

Totat Equity and labitities

Significant accounting policies
Notes to financial statements

Rupaes n lakhy

“Note At at As al
Mo, March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
31 119,061 2.646
3.2 . 251 408
33 g 23
3.4(a) 1,081 739
3.4(kb} 4 4
1.5 5,842 5,804
3.6 11:1:] 136
3.7 518 240
3.6{a) 4,445 5,005
3.8(b) 329 430
3.8{c) 283 10,585
3.8(d) 180 148
3.8(e) 1M 850
19 187 201
132,269 278,370
3.10 286 286
3111 68,171 68,039
3.11.2 (83,666) 84,850
312 - 124 664
313 3,629 -
3.14 87 G9
3.15 808 883
3.16 136,290 -
3.17 6,486 19,115
3.18 27 22
3.19 241 342
132,259 278,370
2
31022

. The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of these financial statements,
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Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited

As per our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No: 301112
Chartered Accountants

Piyush Jalandhara Shrikant D Kulkarni
Partner Director
Membership No. 122351 DIN Number, 05136399

Mantu Kumar Ghosh 5
Director
i

[IN Number 07644889

Place : Mumbai Place ; Mumbai 5
Pate : June 07, 2019 (3ate :.Jjune 07, 2019




Rafasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Logs for the year ended March 31, 2019

Rupees in takhs

Particulars Nots Year ended Year endsdg
No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Revenue from Qperalions 3.20 4,853 :
Other inceme 3.2% 1,132 651
Total Income . 5,785 o8
Expenses

Employee benefit expense 3.22 261 -

fFinance cosls 3.23 4,319 216G

DNepreciation and amonization expenses 6,204 115

Ganeralion, adminstialion and olher expenges 3.24 1,416 B4
Tolal expenses R 12,200 1,115
Loss before exceptional items and tax (6,415} (464}

Exceplional ftems-lImpairment loss {refer note 4 (b)) 141,900 -
Logs before tax (148,3185) (464)

Income tax expense
Current lax
Icome 1ax for earlier years 203

Loss for the year (A) (148,518} {164)

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss ;
Remeasurements of net detined benefit plans 2 - ¢ _

5,
b
:

Total other Comprehensive Income for the year (8) 2

Total Comprehensive l.oss for the year (A+B) {t48,516) {464)

Earnings/ (Loss) per equity share: (Face value of Rs. 10 each)

'f:
b3
3
5
I8
¥

Basic 11 (5,199.57) {16.25)
Diluted 11 (6,199.57) {16.25)
Significant accounting policies 2
Notes to financial slatamenis 310 22

The accompanying notes are an irdegral part of these financial statements



Rajagthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited

As per our repor of even date

For Price Waterhouge
Firm Registration No: 301112 &
Chartered Accourtants

Piyush Jalandhara
Pariner
Membership No. 122351

Place : Mumbai
Date : June 07, 2019

For and on behal of the Board of Directors

Shrikant £ Kutkarni
Director
DIN Number: 05136389

Mantu Kumar Ghosh
Director
DIN Number 07644889

Place : Mumbai
Date : June 07, 2019




Rajasthan Bun Technique Energy Private Limiad
Cosh Elow Statement for fhe year stded March M, 2019

Fariicolars Yenr ended FAT BN
M3, a0 Mardh 81 20n
(A) Cash flow rond fused ing Oparating antivities
(Lous) bedores bag (148,318} {464}
Adustans for
inberes nanme {146) (f651)
Finanee cost 4,318 AL
Mark to Marka! gan on dolivitivis {322) :
Excoplionat lens - Inipairsent Loss 144,900 :
Drepreciation sl anotisation sxpenses . 6,204 L
’ 3,040 (44)
Operailng profit betore working capital changoes
Adjusted for.
finoredasedf dect e 1y Hade recaivables {137}
{Incroase) decrease i oang ()
{Increase) docraage 0 lbans and advances {54)
{Increass)! dedreass In other Non-current gssols 2,202 -
(ineroasel decrenss my nverores (145)
{Decrease) Increase in olher financial Hablities 1,810
{Docreases ) Increase i olher non-current liabilllios {177}
(Decreasel Increase In olhar curent kabiliitios [84j
(Decrease)! Incraase in provislons 1% N
Cash gengrated from opeitions 5,659 -
TFawes paid (et of refunds) i .
Net cash generated from Operaling activities 5,885 . {fidi

{8} Cashflow from/ {used in) Investing activites

Purchase af Propedy, plan and squpment {lnciuding Capital work-in-progress and Capital (2,037) 3,106
advancas)

Inlerest received 538 XLy
Taxes Paid {net of refundy {2562) .
Increase/ (decrense) in Bank balances other han cash and cash equvalents 9,909 {205}
Net cash gemerated from Mvesting activities T 5 m B o - 6,127 .

{C) Cash flow fronmyf (used in) Financing activities

Irercorporate deposit recelved 432 14,570
Infereorporate deposit epand (300) (1.0503
Brarivative ingkrmaenl 1,330 -
Repayment of borrowing - secured {7670} 04T
inferest and finance chargas paid {7,706} [8,902)
Net cash {Lised in) Financing activities (13,914} (5,045)
Net increasef (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+G) (101} o8

Casgh and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year:
Bank balance - current accounl 430 332

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year:
Hank baianes - current aceount 320 430 p

The statement of cash flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method® sed out in Indian Accounting Standards {(nd AS) - 7 "Slatement of Cash
Flows". :

R

The zecampanying notes are an integral part of these financials statemeants.
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Rajagthan Sup Technigie Bnergy Private Linfied
Notes to the financia! statements as of and for the yesr ended March 31, 2019

1) General iiforviation

Rajasthan Sun Teehnique Enermgy Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Reliance Power Limifed. The
Cormpany s a 3pecial Purpose Vehicle (o develop 100 mega wall (MW) Solar Centenfrated Thermal Powar Praject af
Dhursar, Near Pokhian, District Jaisalmer, Rejasthan, The Company has entered into u Power Purchase Agreerment
(PPA) for 100 MW capacity with NTRC Vidyut Vyapar Migaim Limitad (NVVN),

The Company is a Prvate Limited Company which is ineorporated and domiciled i indis under the provigions of (he
Companies Act, The registered office of the Company is located al H Block, T8t Figor, Didrubhal Ambaiii Kriowledye
City, Navi Mumbai - 400710,
These financial slitements were authorised for issue by he board of directors on June 07, 2019

2)  Significant sceountinig policies and criticat accounting estimates and judgments:

2.1 Basls of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparalion of these tinancial slatements are set oA below. Thase
policies have been consistently applied fo all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

{a} Basis of preparation
Compliance with ind AS

The financial stetements are in compliance, in all material aspects, with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other relevant provigions of the Acl, as
amended, and rules made ihereunder.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial stalements are presented in 'Indian Rupees’, which is also the Company funclional currency. All
amounls are rounded fo the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise slated.

Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by ihe following:

»  Cerain financial assets and financial liabilities al fair value;
«  Defined benefit plans - plan assets that are measured at fair value;

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except certain financial assets
and financial kabilities which are measured at fair value,

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the: price that would be received to sall an asset or paid lo ransfer a liability in an orderdy transaction
hetween markel participants al the measurement date. The Company uses valuation techniques thal are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufiicient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disciosed in the financial statements are calegorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest [evel input that is sigrificant to the fair £
valiie measurament as a whole:

»  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) marked prices in active markels for identical assets or habilities

+ Level 2 —- Vajuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable
» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable %
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Rajasthan Sun Techhigue Energy Private Limited
Notes 1o the financial statements as of and for the yaar ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

Current vis-fvis non-current classification

The assets and liabiites reported in the balance shest arg classified on a "currentmon-current basis”, willh saparste
regorting of assels held for sale snd liabilies. Curredd aksels, which include cash and cash atjuivalents, aie aszels
that are inended to be realized, sold or constimied during the normal operaling cycle of the Company or in the 12
maonths fallowing the balance sheet dals; curent liabilftlies are liabiites that are expected to be setilac during 1he
noiital oparating cycle of the Comparty or within the 12 months following the close of the financial yesr, The deferred
tax atsels and dabilites are classilied as non-curment assels and liabiities.

(b} Recent accounting profiouncements
New stantards or interpretations adopled by the Company

The Ministry of Corporale Affairs (MCA) has nolified the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2018 on March 28, 2018 which include Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 115 in respedt of *Revenus
from Canlracts with Gustomers’ which has replaced inler alia, the existing nd AS 18 'Revenye’ and is mandatory
for reporting periods beginning on or after Aprl 01, 2018, The adoption of Ind AS 115 did not have any materiat
impact on the Company's financial statements.

Rater note 2(n}i} for the accounting policy
New standards or interpretations issued but not yet effective

The Company will apply the following standard for the Tirst tme for its apnual reporting penod commencing st
Aprit, 2019

On Matcih 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporale Affairs (MCA) notified cerlain other amendments fo Indian
Aceounting Standards (Ind AS), as below, as part of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Second
Amendment Rules, 2019, These other amendments come into force on Aprit 01, 2019,

Ind AS - 12 “Income taxes”, Appendix C - Uncertainty over income tax treatments

The appendix explaing how (o determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment,
or group of fax treatments, that the companies have used or plan 1o use in lheir income tax fillng which has fo be
considered 10 compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the 1ax treatment wheri determining
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax fosses, unused tax credits and fax rates,

Ind AS - 12 "Income taxes”

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past transaclions
or events.

Ind AS - 1% “Employee benefits”, Plan amendment, curtailment or setflement

The amendments require an entity
. to Use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the

period after a plan amendment, curlailment or settlement; and

. to recognize in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on setilement, any reduction in
a surplus, even if that surplus was nol previously recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Ind AS - 23 “Berrowing costs”

The amendments clarify that if a specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready
far its itended use or sale, it becomes part of general borrowings,

The effeclive date for adoption of amendments as per Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Second
Amendment Rules, 2019 Is annual periods beginning on or after April 81, 2019. The Company will adopt the
standard on Aprit 01, 2019 and is in the process of evatuating the impact on account of above amendment on its
financial statements and will accordingly consider the same from period beginning April 01, 2019,




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes to thie financial statements as of and for the yeer ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

(c)

{d})

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carred at historical cosl, Al olher ilems of property, plant and equipment (PPEY are staled s
islorical vout less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditore that is directy allributalde 1o (ke acguisilicn
of the ilems. Subsequent costs are includad in the asset's cairying amounl or recogidsed as o separate asset, As
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits aasociated with the em witl flow 1o the
Gompany and the cost of the item can be measursd reliably, The carrying amount of any compenant accotnted
for ge a separate assel is derecognised when replaced. All offer repairs and maintenance are charged 1o profit o
ligs during the reporting period in which they are incupred.

Expenditure incurred on assels which are not ready for their intended use comprising direct cost, related
incidantal expenses and attributable borrowing cost are disclosed undsr Capital Work-in-Progress.

Accordingly all project refated expendifure viz, civil works, machinery under srection, congtruction and erection
materials, pre-operative expenditre heidental / directly attdbutable 1o constriction of project, borrowing cosl,
sonshruction stores, and direct operational expenses (nel of revende during construclions) related to the Lnits of
power generaled in the iferim pedod, pending caplialisation, are disclosed as Capital work-in-progress.

Depreciation methods, estintated useful lives and residual value:

Depreciation on PPE is provided to the extent of deprociable amount on Straigh Line Method (SLM) based on
usedul life of the following assets as praseribed in Pant C of Schedule 1 1o the Companies Act, 2013 axcept in
respect of Plant and equipment whare useful life has been estimated as 25 years as presoribed under Central
Elecliicity Regulatory Commission and based on Intemal assessment and lechnical evaluation by the
management.

Particulars Estimated useful lives
Buildings 310 30 yoars

l.ease hold Land Over the lease yoars
Plant and Equipment 1o 25 years
Fumitere and fixtures 10 years

Motor Vehicles 10 years

Office Eauipments 5 years

Computers 3 years

In respect of additions or extensions forming an integral parl of exisling assets and insurance spares, including
incrementat cost arising on account of franslation of foreign currency liabililies for acguisition of Properly. plant
and equipmenn, depreciation is provided as aforesaid over the residual life of the respective assets.

Estimated useful lives, residual vatues and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking into account
commercial and techpological obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and adjusted prospectively, i
appropriate.

Lease hold land is amortised over the lease period from the date of receipl of advance possession of exacution of
tease deed, whichaver is sarlior.

Intangible assets:

infangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortization /
depletion and impairment oss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, botrowing costs and any cost
directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and adjustment arising from
exchange rate variation attribitable to the intangible assets.

Expenditure incurred on acquisition of intangible assets which are not ready to use at the reporting date is
disclosed under "intangible assets under development”.

Amortisation method and periods

Amorlization is charged on a straight-line basis over a period of three years, The estimated useful life and
amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.



Rajasthan Sun Technique Enorgy Private Linited
Notes fo the financial statements as of and for the year endedd March 31, 2019 {continued)

(e} Impairment of non-financial assets

{H

(g}

Asgels which are subject to depragialion or amodisation are tested for impairment whenever evends or changes
in circurnstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment Joss is recognised fir
the amount by which the asset's canying amount exceeds ils recoverable amouinl, The recoverable amount i fhe
higher of an assel's falr value tess costs of disposal and valtue in use, For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assels are grouped at the lowaest fevels for which there are separately idertifiable cash inflows which s largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of agsels (Cagh-generating unils). Norfinaneial
assels thal suffered an impaimment are reviewsd for possible reversal of the impaimient al the end of gach
reparting period.

Trade Receivable

Trade receivables are recognised inilially at fair vatue and subsequently measured sl amortised cost using the
effective inlerest method, less provigion for impairment,

Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract 1hat gives rise to a financial asset of one endity and a financial liabilly or
equity instruments of another enlity,

Investments and other financial assels
i. Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measuremen calegories:
+« those to be measured Subseguently at fair value (gither though other comprehensive income, or
through profit or foss), and
« those measured al amonlised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing e financial assets and the
contraclual terms of the cash flows,

For assets measurad at fair value, gains and losses will either ba recorded in profit or loss or olher
comprehensive income. For investrments in debt instruments, this wili depend on the business model in
which the investment is held.

The Company reclassifies debt investinents when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

ii. BMeasurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures & financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly athibutable 1o the acguisition
of the financial asset. Transaclion costs of financial assets canied at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or logs.

Pebt instruments: Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business
medel for managing the asset and the cash flow characterislics of the asset. There are three measurement
calegories inlo which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets thal are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a deit
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income {FVOCI): Assets thal are heid for collection of
contractual cash fliows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and inlerest, are measwed al fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCH. Movements in the camying amount are taken through OQCl except for the recognition of
impairment gains or {osses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised
in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OC| s reclassified from equity 1o profil or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest

income from these financiat assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

4
u
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Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 {continued)

vi.

Fair vatue through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets thal do nof mest the criteria for amorlised cost or
FVOCT are measured al fair value through profit or toss. A gain or 1oss on a dabt invesiment thal is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loas is recognised in profit or loss i the period in
which it arses. Interest income from theze finsncial assels is inchuded iy ather incoine.

impairment of financial assels

The Company assesses oh a forward looking basis the expeclad credit losses associated with its ansets
carmied &l amorlised cost. The impainment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
sighificant increass in credi risk,

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach penniited by Ind AS 109 Financial
nstruments, which requires expected lifotime losses to be recognised Trom initial recognition of 1he
receivables.

Derecognition of financial azsoets
A financial asset is derecognised only when,

* The Company has transferred the rights 1o receive cash flows from the financial asset or
« retains the contractusl fights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a sorfraclual
obligation (o pay the cash flows to one or more recipients,

Where the entity has transferred an assat, the Company evaluates whether il bas transferred substantially afl
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is defecognised.
Where the entity has nol ransferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
the financial assel is not derecognised. Where the enlity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial agset, the financial assel is deresognised i
the Company has not retained control of the financial assel. Where the Company retaing conlrot of the
financial assel, the asset is continued to be recognised 1o the extent of conlinuing involvement in the
financial asset.

Income recognition
Interest income

interest income from debt instruments is recognised Using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts thraugh the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Company eslimales the expected cash flows by consideting all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider the expected cradit losses.

Dividend

Dividends are recoghised in profit or ioss only when the right 1o receive payment is established, i is
probable thal the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Commpany, and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derivative Financial instruments;

Dervative are initially recognised at fair value on the dale of derivative contract is entered into and are

stubsequently re-measure to their fair value at the end of the each reporting period. Furlher gain / (losses)
arising on settlement and fair value change on derivalive cohtracts are classified to finance cost.

(h} Offsetting financial instruments

{i)

Financial assets and Habilities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the balance sheel where there is a
tegally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simulianeously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptoy of the Company or the counterparty.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classifled as equity. Incremental costs dnectfy attributable to the issue of new shares or options
et shown jg:q.equjtyﬂgg\a deduction net.of tay, from.the. o soaads. T . it e




Rajasthan Sun Techhigue Energy Private Limited
Naotes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 201% {continued)

(i}

(k}

- avanis - ig-prebable that-an owflows-of ressuress will be roguited o setfle the obligatien;and the-amounl hag - s o

Financial Halyilities
Classification as debt or eguity

Debl and equity ingtruments lssusd by the Company arg classitied s either financial labilities or gy Lty
ift accordance wilh tha substance of the contractual aftangements and the definition of a financial liakilly
and an acully instruinsnt,

An sgully instrument i any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assels of an entily after
deducting all of its Habiliiey.

initial recognition ind moasurement

Al tinancial tinkdities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of direcily attiibutable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial liabilties include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings inciuding bank
overdrafts, iinancial guaraniee contracts and derivative financial instnanents.

Subsequent maasurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as descoribed below:

Borrowings: Borrowings are subseguently carmied al amorised cost; any difference betweean the proceads
(net of transaction costs} and the redemption value is recognised in the stalement of profit and logs over 1he
period of the horrowings using the effective interest method.

Facs pald on the establishment of loan facifilies are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extenl
thal it is probable that some or all of the facility wilt be drawn down. 1 his case, the fee is deferrad unil e
draw-down oceurs, To the exent there is no evidence 1hat il is probable thal some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, (he fee s capilalised as a pre-payment for liquidily services and amortised over the period of
the facilily to which i relates.

Trade and other payable: These amounts represent obligations 1o pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. These payable are classified as current liabifilies
if payment is due within one year or less olherwise they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade and
payables are subsequently measured at amontised cost using the effeclive interest method.

Financial guarantes contracts: Financial guarantee coniract are subsequently measured at the highar of
the amount delermined in accordance with ind AS 37 and the amount initiafly recognised iess cumulative
amortisation, where appropriate.

Derecognition

Borrowings are remaved from the balance sheel when the obligation specified in the contract is

discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liabiity that

has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or labilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/{losses).

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from thhe same lender on substantiatly different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or medification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liabily and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profil or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current Habilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
seltlement of the liability for at least 12 months afler the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on desmand on the reporting date, the enlity does not classily the
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
slatements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

e oz

been reliably estimated.
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Rajasthan Sun Tochnigue Energy Private Limod
Notes ta the financlal statemeits s of and for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

U}

Provisions are maasured at the prosent value of management’s besl estimate of the expenditure regquirsd (o
serllle the present obligation al the end of the reporling perlod. The diseount rate used to determing the pregent
value is @ pre-dax rate that reflects current market assessmenis of ibe time value of money and the rsks specific
to the liability. Thee ingresse in the provision due to the passage of ime s recognised as interest expense,

Cortingent Habilities

GContingent Habllitiss are disclosed when thers is a possible obligation ansing from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the octunmence or nor-oeouirence of ong of more uncertain future events notl
wholly within 1he contrad of the Company. A present obligation that arises from past events where it i3 either not

probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o sellle or reliable sslimate of the amount cannal be maie,
is fermed as contingent lability.

Contingent Assets:

A contingent assel is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable {o the acquisition, construction or progustion of
a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of tirae that is required to complete and prepare the assed for
s inlended use or sale. Qualifying assels are assets that necessarily lake a substantial period of fime to get

reeady for thelr intended use or sale.

nvestment income earned on the lemporary investment of specific botfowings pending their expenditure on
qualitying assels is deducted from the botrowing costs eligible for capilatisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred,

(m) Foreign currency {ranslation;

Functional and presentation currency

ems included in the Tinancial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the funclional currency'). The financial stalemenis
are presented in 'Indian Rupees’ (INR}, which is the Company's functional and the Company's preseralion
CUFTency

Transactions and balances

Foretgn currency Uransactions are transiated inlo the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions.

All exchange differences arising on reporting of shoit term foreign currency monetary items other than
derivative contracts at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss/ Capital Work-in-Progress,

in respect of foreign exchange differences arising on revalualion or setitement of long lerm foreign currency
monetary items, the Company has availed the option available in the Ind AS-101 to continue the policy
adopted in Previous GAAP for accounting of exchange differences arising from transiation of long-term
forsign currency monetary itemns outstanding as on March 31, 2016, wherein:

- Foreign exchange differences on account of depreciable assel, is adjusied in the cosl of depreciable asset
and would be depreciated over the balance life of asset.

+ in other cases, foreign exchange difference is accumulated in "foreign currency monetary itemn translation
difference account” and amortised over the balance period of such long term asset / Habilities.

Non-monetary ilems denominated in foreign currency are staled at lhe rates prevailing on the dale of the
ransactions / exchange rate al which transaction is actually effected.

{r) Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized, when the control of the goods or setvices has been bransferred to consumers. Revenue
15 measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, nel of discounts and other similar
allowances.




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes to the finaniciat statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

{o)

- aecownted foras-defined sentibution plans and-the contiibutiona are recognised s employee benefil expense -+~ &

Sale of energy

Revenue from sale of energy is recognised on an acerigl basis and in accordance with the provisions of Power
Purchase Agrissment (PPAY with NTPC Vidyot Vyapsr Nigam Limited (NVVNY read with Central Eleetiioty
Regulstory Gongmission (CERCY ragulations (Also refer note 2.1 {b) above).

Cther operaling incofte
Ravenus from certified reduction unifs is recognised aa per terms and conditions agreed wilh frustee on fuiure
sale of conlifisd emission mduction unite

Employee benefits:
Shortderm obligations

Liabilities for wages and salarles, including non-manetary benefits that are expected to be seltled wholly wihin 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render he related service are recognised in respect of
amployees’ services up (o the end of the reporting perdod and are measurad at the amomits expected 1o be paid
when the labiliies are sottled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefil obligations in the balance
sheel,

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabiitties Yor samed leave and sick leave are nol expected Lo be settled wholly within 12 months after e end
of the period in which the employees render the relaled sevice. They are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up 10 the end of the
reporting pericd using the projected unit credit method. The benefils are discounted using the market yields at the
end of the reporting pericd that have terms approximating 1o the tlerms of the related obligation. Remeasurements
as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumplions dgre recognised in profit or ioss/
Capital Work-in-Progress.

The obligations are mesenled as currend labilities in the bakince sheet if the entity doegs not have an
unconditional right to defer setttement for at least twelve months after the reporting petiod, regardiess of when
the aclual sedtlement ks expected to oceur.

Post employee obligations

The Company operales the following post-employment schemes:
- defined benelit plans such as gratuity
defined contripulion plans such as providen! fund.

Gratuity obligations

The llabilily or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benelil graluity plans is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting peried less the fair vahue of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligalien is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obiigation denominated in rupees fs determined by discounling the
eslimated fultre cash outfiows by reference to markel yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of
profit and loss/ capilal work in progress.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in which they ocewr, direclly in other comprehensive income. They are included in
retained earnings in the stalement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments
are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution ptans
Provident fund
The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local reguiations.

The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are

when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recogaiséu @
reduction in the future paymenis is available.

1 -psset to the exdent that a cash jefund or a




Rajasthan Bun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019 (cordinued)

(p)

{a)

{n

{s}

Superannuation

Cerlgin amployses of the Company are participants in a detingd contribition plan. Tie Comparsy biag no furdhier
obligations to the plan beyond its monihly contribitions which gre contribulad to a trust fund, the corpus of which
it invested willi Reliance Life Insdrance Company Lmiled.

incomte fax

The income tax expanse or eradit for the period is the lax payable on the current period's taxable income basad
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusied by changes in deferred tax assets and liabiities
attribidable o lemporary differences and 1o unused 1ax losses,

The currant income tax charge & calcutated on the basks of the 1ax laws enacted ar substantively epacied atl the
end of the reporiing period in the countries where he Contpany operale and generate taxable income,
Maragemant periodically evaluates positions taken i lax retums with respect to situations in which applicatile
tax regiulation is sulsject 10 interpretation. H establishes provisions where appropriale on the basis of amounts
axpecled to he pakd 10 the tax sulborities,

Delerrad income tax is provided in full, on temporary diffsrences arsing between the tax base of assels and
liabilities and thelr canying amounts in the financial slaterments. Deferred income tax is alse hot accounted for if it
arigen from initlal recognition of an asset or liabifily in @ (ransaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting profil nor laxable profil (lax loss), Deferred incore fax is
delermined using tex rates (and faws) thal have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
periad and ars expeclad lo apply when the related deferred mcome tax asset is realised or the deferred income
lax liabilily is settied,

Deferred tax assets are recognised Tor all deductible temporary differences and unused 1ax losses only if # s
prabable that future laxable amounts will be available o Wilise those temporary differences and losses,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when (here is a legally snforceable right fo offsel current lax assels
and liabilities. Current tax assets and fax liabilities are offeel where the entily has a legally enforceable right 1o
offsel and intends either to setfle on a net basis or (o realise the assel and settie the liability simullanecusty.

Current and dederred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except 1o the exlent that il relates to Hems recogiised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the {ax is also recognised in other comprehensive
incone or diractly in equity, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statemen! of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or
less from dale of acquisilion that are readily convertible 1o known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Baslic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

- the profit aliributabie to owners of the Company

- by the weighled average number of equity shares oulstanding during the financial year.

Dituted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share 10 {ake into

account:
- the after incomae tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equily shares,

and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirec! method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
ransactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activittes of the Company are segregated based on the
available information.




Rajasthan Sun Tedhinique Engrgy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statemeirs as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

()

{u)

(v)

SBegment reporting

Operaling ssgments are eported in a manner consistent with the internal reporling providad to he thisf
operafing decision-maker, The chial operating detision-maker, who is responsible Tor allocating rescurces and
assessing porformance of the operating segments, has beei identified ag the chief exacutive officer and (he chisf
financial officer that makes sirategic decisions,

Bividands

Provision 15 miade {or the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriatety authorised and no Jonger st the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporling period but nol distributed al the end of the reporing

period,
inventories:
inventories of lools, stores, spares parls, consumable supplies and fuel are valued ol lower of weightad average

cost, which includes all non refundable duties and charges incuned in bringing the goods 1o their present location
and condition, and net realizahble value after providing for obsolescence and other losges,




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial stalemerts as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

2.2 Critieal accounting estimates and judgments

{a)

{b}

{c}

{d}

Preparing the financig! steiements under Ind AS requires management 1o take decisions and make estimates and
assuimplions that miay impact the value of revenues, costs, assels and habilites and the relaled disclosures
concarting the lems ivolved as well as cantingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheel date. Eslimatoy
and judgements are confinuslly evaluated and are based on historlest expenence and other factors, inchiding
expectations of future eventls st are believed Lo be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company make eslimates and assumptions concerning the lutwre, The resulting accounting estimiaies will,
by definifion, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumplions that have a significant rigk
of causing a materkal adiustment o the carrying amounts of asscts and liahilties within the next financial year arg
discussed balow:

Useful lives of Power plant and depreciation method

Maragerient of the Company decided the estimated useful lives of power plant and respective deprecialion. The
gccauniing estimate s baged on the expecled wears and tearg incurred during power generalion. Wears and
lears can be significantly different following renovation each lime, When the useful lives differ Trom the ariginal
estimatad usehd lives, management will adjust the estimated uselul lives accordingly. It is possible that the
estimales made based on existing expertence are different to the aclual oblcomes within the next financial pariod
and could cause a material adjustiment 1o the carrying amount of Propery, plant and equipments (Refer note 3.1
and 2(ch) .

Income taxes

There ars transaclions and calculations for which the ultimate fax determinalion is uncerlan and woukl get
finalized on completien of assessment by tax authorities, Where the final tax culcome is different from the
amaunts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the pariod in which such determinalion is made.

Daterred tax on temporary differences reversing within the tax holiday period is measured al the 1ax rates that are
expectad 1o apply during the tax holiday period, which is the nil 1ax rate. Deferred tax on temporary differences
reversing after the tax holiday period is measured at the enacted or sybstantively enacted tax rates hat are
expecied to apply after lhe 1ax holiday period. Managetment eslimates that Company is not likely to generale
taxable income in the foreseeable future and accordingly deferred tax asset on unused tax losses is nol
recognised (Refer nole 12).

Fair value measurement and valuation process

The management delermines the appropriate valuation technigue and inputs for fair value measurement. In
eslimating {he fair value, the management engages third party qualified valuer to perform the valuations if
require,

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated. They are hased on historical experience and othier

factors, including expectations of fulure evends that may have a financial impact on the Company and thal are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances (Refer note 13).

Impairment of assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of #ts Property, plant and
equipment to delermine whether there is any indicalion that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any

such indicalion exisls, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss {if any} [Refer note 4(b)}.
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Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Privive Limied
Notes o the financial slatefnents 0s of and for the year anded March 31, 2099 {continuetd)

' 3.2 Capital Work in Progress

Rupees In likhs

Parlicufars As at

InGurrad during

Capitalised *

A at

_ March 31, 2018 it year March 31, 2019
A, Assels under constrisction 115,492 175,462 -
3. incidental expoaditure pending allocatian
(i) Expenses
Intergsl and Finance Charges 53,155 4202 57 407
Employes benelll expenses
-~ Gadary, bonus and other allowance 4,080 279 4,359
~ Gonlribution to provident and other funds 154 13 17E
- Leuve encasbment and gealty {(Refor Nole 8) 121 2 123
Legal and professional foas (including shate service charges) 2077 273 3,060
Deplracialion amortisaion expenses 1,624 fid 1,708
txchange lossigain (el refer Note no. 2.4.0m) and 17) 2007008 14,5140 35,622
Cither direct and {ncidental expemndiure 17.665 4,131 21,796
Sub total 06,284 93,853 124,137
{ii) Incidental incoma during constroction 24,368 4,202 28,570
Net expentditure pending allocation {i) - (ii) B 75,816 19,661 B 95,567
Total (A+B) o T 251,408 10681 274,080 |
Frayious yesr - 248,306 3,102 -
* Reder nole 4 {a)
e . e N Ruipees In fakhs
. As al Incurred during _— As at
i sed
Particulars March 31, 2047 the year Capitafised |y on 3, 2018
A, Assets under construction 172,796 2896 - 175,492
8. Incidental expenditure pending allocation
{i} Expenses
nlerest and FFinance Charges 45079 8,085 B3 150
Employee benefit expenses
- Salary, bonus and olher allowance 3434 G4G 4,080
- Cantribution to provident and other furids 134 25 154
- Leave encashment and graluity (Refer Noto §) 5 16 - 121
Legal and professional fees (including share service chaiges) 2.487 290 2T
Depreciation/ amortisalion expenses 1408 216 - 624
Exchange loss/(gain) (het) {refer Note no. 2.1.{m) and 17} 20,368 335 - 20,703
Other direct and Incidental expenditure 15,752 143 - 17 565
Sub total B8, 758 11,526 - 100,284
(i) Incidentaf inrcome during construction 13,248 11,120 - 24,368
Net expenditure pending allocation (i) - {ii} 75,510 406 _ - 75,916
Total {A+B) 248,306 3,102 - 251,408




I
:
[

Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Privale Limited
Notes to thig financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

3.3 Other Intangible assefs

Rupoes in lakhs

Computer Software

Carr‘ying amount

As ot March 31, 2017 96
Additions during the year

Carrying amount as af March 31, 2018 _ 96
Additions during the year -
Carrying amount as at March 34, 2019 96
Accumuiated amortisation

As &t March 31, 2017 34
For tha year 39
Balance as at March 31, 2018 73
For the year 14
Balance as at March 31, 2019 87
Net carrying amounit

As al March 31, 2018 23
Asg al March 31, 2019 9
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Fhiance assets - Non-curent
(Eaemacurad sl womnieied good]

Fdfah Drarivdlive sssols (Maik to Market) on denvislive istoaissls of

3.4l Eoang
Berulily deposls

25 Olher noncirent assets
{LInseEcured dand considnred good)

Larepitral sdtvanees f2ator nule 100

3.6 Non GUrrenl Lix agsels (net}
LANTENE A Azsnls foede nole 121

Y venlories
Slerges mnek speaies

3.6{a) Trade recoivables

Trade 1ecendbles considared qood - Seacurd

Fradi (eceivabios consldenad good - Unseorad

Trade recelvabies which hnva sigpnilicant ingrease i credi ask
Tracho reveieabiog - cred ivleed

3.5{b} Cash and cash equivalents

[Fatlimnce with Dards
(RN evl Wi T

3.0} Hank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents
Eanrproslls vathy orginal malurity of more hae hoe months Dt less than lwelve months

dafd) Surrent Laans
fAnsecurad and considered qood)

SRCLnly Toposits
| o Lo employe s

3600 Odber currsit linancial assets
{Unseegred anc contaarad goodt

tiuer Recenalles
e vative asseds (Mark 10 dtarket) on derivative nstiamants (MNet)
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fEdrsacuren anu corsswhanad gued)
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30

3104

30,2

3403

3104

e o RUBREE HRDS
fis At A oak
o AR B Y, 2018 Margh 31

2010

Share sapisl

Auvthoriged
4,000,000 (Mante 35, 20080 4,000,000} syuily shes of s, 10 sa A

{s5ued, subscribed and paid up capltal
2,850,300 (Mavch 31, 2018 2856, 350) equily Bliarek of By 149 sach fully paid.up 2BE i

Reconcilation of number of shares

Equity shares

Batance gl the beqinning of 1he year - 2,056 360 (Marah 31, 2000 2 866.050) shares of Rs. 10 sach e ot
& Al
Batlance at the end of ihe year - 2 BSG, 350 (March 31 2018 2 856 3501 shiares of Rs, 10 each 86 ' 2!!5

Rights, preterence and restriction attached to sty sharss

Equity shares
The Gompany has only one class of equlty shares having par value of Fs. 1 par share. Each nodder of the aquity shane is snlitad (o ona vols gor share. if the
cvent of liquidation of the Company, the holders of gouity shares wilf ba sollthsd 0 receive the remimning assseis of the Company, after distilaion of sl

preferentlal smounts.

Shares held by Halding Company
Equity shares

Felance Power Limitad - Halding Campany it 56
2,856,350 (Marcy 31, 2018: 2 856 350) shares of s, 10 each fulty pusid
{Out of the above 2,856,349 (March 31, 2015: 2 BSG 348 equily shiares are held by Rellance Fower
Limited, the Hotding Company and 1 Bguity Share wes jeinity held by Kebarce Fower Limlted ood its
MNomimees)
286 Fxill

Detalis of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares In 1he Company
Equly shares
Equilty shares of Rs 10 each tdly paid ap hetd by Rellanse Fower Limited - Holding Company

100%: 100,

Percentage of holding in {he olass
Numbes of shares 28,563,500 28,063,500
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An sl

Paricubars o BIEN 1

Lither equliy
Bakunce sl U end of e year
3111 ngtraur it mairely guquiy Innatire

Fapfaroens Yleh
Irkar - €aarpiarali disjs

2.

fift, 142

... Jupens i sty

2
HIEA0

341,11 Proterencs Bharas

Aulhorsey
WLOCOD00 [Mirch: 31 2018 10,000 000} prodorencs shargs of Re 1 gach

100

ZLRTRY

100

Feuid, subscribed aml padd up capilal
2BEE 300 RS 3 AR08 350) share of Re 1 each

Boconslhation of number of shares

Praference shares frefar sede no, 3117, 4(a)
ab e hosniing of i pear
2,050, 350 (Muech 31 2000, F 300 sharos of Ko 1 eich

Hrilance 810 00 o g your - 2 BSEI60 e S E 20 2805 AE0) shans nf fe 1 dnch

DAL Termisd rights srched 1 preteren s shares
7% Compubaory Converihbe Red hire Mon-C Iative: Prelerence Shargg {CCRIE)
The Coampalry stall ve a
v of agrond s (20 pe.

aAlt oplion on CCRPS which can bo exercissd Oy Hie GOnpany in one o o ranches and b o o ol Hefors e
of the said shsres 10 case e call opllon 15 sxercined, CORPYS shall e iedeamon st me isse price o e vl

and Gremviving The hiligars ol CORPS however. shall Nave an ogticn to convert CORPS imo equly shares at any e during e tenus of such
shaees A Hw oo of Tenare pnd o e exlont this Company o e sharaholder hag nol axiciseg Wl oplions, GORPS shall e compulsonly
conmverted into aquily afares, Dn convarslon, in sifher case, aach CORPS ahadl De wotwerhsd into o Tully pald eouily share of 5 10 cach al
prarmiu of Re B0 share, B adring (he enare of CCRPS. the Gompany declires souity dividend, CORPES holiery stugl alse b entilled b dhvigind on
Hieil shiwes gl dhe Sene tebe ge e oquity deadend ainad tas diacderd will be over o sbove W coupon il of 7 520 These prafunence skaes shioll

cerbirmer s b i e e

Netells of shares bl by shaveholders holtding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in1he Conipany
Freference shires [refer note no, L411.4a)

Profarence Sharos of e § sack ily paid ap held by Redwanne Power Liited - Halditg Conspany

Parcenage of hoiding i 1he class 100, 10
Murier of shids 2.8860.3450 86 350
e s Rupges I lakhs
Ak oal Ag o
______ March 31, 2019 March 31, 2615
541.1.2 Inter Corporate Deposh jrefer note 10}
Opaning baliue B ] AN
Al rocenoed during Lhe pear 1z 105
T Teeadz. T 88,010
3112 Reserves and surpius
Batanoe al the e of the yesr
CRCLEIRE Dronilm men] 56714 56,75
e R saernnns 11403001 H,1EG
Fotal reseryes and suipius ..WW_..._V.W...WLB,,?;MML .
314,21 Securltbes premiun account frefler nole 3.11.2.3} 66,714 o6 714
31422 Surpius fDeflslt}in the Statement ol Prolit and Loss
Balanee ot he Degarand of 1l yem 136 BB
|.oms 4o 1lee yam [N G
Falance at the earl of 1he vea o “"‘Ti’éi'cifé'ébi' )
JEE R T

311.2.3 Nalure and purpose of other reserves:
SecuFties premiun account:
Seculy PIEmium seeound s Tor frenriag an
Pt

o The meseeve e Be ublsed in aceondimce with the provision of the Compaes Acl
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A priendfies eof 1008 of the totsd RsLss hara

ap Verm lomes Batance fom all ks finses Ssiingiond olhoer partor of e, 188,400 Wkl (Mach
sceared By MGt Glinege of alf e nirvaliis arid e sadots Of e (00 ol 1] [ ke
cAalOf v Cornpany hikd iy e | Floiny Compiny

1y Flnz Holding Cuthydlty s gaeer B0t commiliieotd moeranton o b ok of e Company. sl noge 50}

ch Cureenst Wistunties oF 6000 s Borimaing s Nve Feedt chas il g ol current frbsitien (rofos o 5 15 Galgn fefer ik 5t e anesl
ARG

3122 Tenns of repaymenat of ang and rafe of Itberest:

Thae Fagaee koan T @ Wiure oF s 8 years o @ date od frst distoraenient wil [ reisad e S unanad quia gaby iskamiams sieiing rens
Jarnaary OF, 2008 ane i ralo s Roaling rele Eiked 1 s Bonk Dase rabe phus 2%, papsthe onomoniley bass 106 olistanding Dakants @s oo
yezar B [ R B 10 b iharch 31, 4R B S Ehhs).

by Forelkgn curency toin o friseas ) nslitdend Giher paheg of huis @ terare o Upio 17 35 yiwes o 1he dale of firgt disbusamant [t wil B tepaid it
F unecual 1Al pearly mstalinends slarbing from Janoary 2 2074 aed cary fod of 286% o anmam ke sall pidaly. T9e outstanding balsisn
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Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limijed
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

3.20

N

3.22

3.23

3.24

Particulars

Revenus from operations
Sale of energy

Other Operating income
Carbon credit emission

Qther income

interest income:
Bank deposils

Net gain on setlliement and fair value change arrising on
derivative instruments mandstorily measiured al FVTPL
(her non-operating income

Employee benefils expense

Salaries, bonus and other allowances
Contribution 1o provident Tund and othar Tunds
Gratuity and leave encashment

Finance cost

Interest on:

Rupee term {oans

Foreign currency loans

Others
Net loss on settlement and fair value change arising on
derivative contracls

Generation, administration and other expenses

Stores and spares consumed
Water Charges
Hire charges
Rent expenses
Repairs and mainlenance

- Plant and equipmend

- Others
tagal and professional charges
Postage and telephone
Travelling and conveyance
Rates and taxes
insurance
Miscellaneous expenses

Rupees In laikhs

Yaar endod
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

4,389

264

4,683

€51

651

223
14
24

281

340
3.911
5%

916

4319

916

337
221
114

163

203

11

238

78
44

24

[N

13

37

o ALEe




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Enerdy Private Limited
‘Notes te ihe financial statersents as of and for the yoar ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

4}

3)

Property, plaint and equipment
{a) Capitadisation

The Company's Power plant had starled generation of eleclicity, however (he plant was operating at a sub-optinsl
leved / nol aphiavad lie ntended capacily. Considering the nascent nature of the tgchiology, the managemeant hag
bean incuiring additional cost for implementation of several performance measures to achieve s inlendeid
capacity. Gongiduring the Company's aceounting policy of capitalization and en achieving the inlended
performance of plant basis flie current structure and capital sxpencilure inourred, the Conpany has capitalized its
plant an Oclober 01, 2018, Leaving DN (direct normal imadianee) uncerainty aside, 1n terms of operaiing
performence, for & given level of DN input (in terms of its quantity and quality), plant is able to generate
pradictable level of snergy.

(b)) tmpairment

Post capilatization, as axplained above, the plant has been operating al g sub-optimuni leve) dug 10 varicus faclors
such as lower DN, availability of the experts for the techinology, he lechnology being nascent and very faw plants
of this size being operaling across the world,

In view of the above conditions, the Company carried oul an assessment 1o lest the carrying amount as at March
31, 2019 of Property, plant end equipment (PPE) of Re. 260.961 lakhs for impairmant in accordance with Indian
Accouinting Standard 36 ('Ind AS 367, An independent expert estimaled value-in-use by adopting discounted cash
flow mathod for the balance useful life of the project as al March 31, 2018 by sels of assumptions reflective of likely
Tuture operating scenarios. Based on the said assessment, (he Company has recorded an impairment provigion of
Rs 141,900 lakhs. As the amount of impairmenl provigion is significant to the financial statements, the same has
been disclosed az "Exceptional items” in lhe Statement of Profil and Loss.

The assessment of value-in-use involved several key assumptions inehuding future genaration, terminal valise,
exchange rate, which are baged on third parly reports and Hinvelves significant judgement. Any adverse change in
the assumptions would impact the carrying value. Management would continue 1o periodically review the
assumptions consldered at avery reporting period.

Default in repayment of outstanding dues to lenders

The Company hag availed long term financing facility from consortium of bankers which includes, Axis Bank, Asian
devefopment bank (ADB), Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij Voor Ontwikkelingslanden NV, (FM(G) and
Exports-Import Bank of The United States (US Exim). During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company was -
liable to pay Rs. 4,638 lakhs towards principal and Rs. 3,718 lakhs towards the interest. Oul of the said amounts,
Rs. 4,026 has remained unpaid as overdue as al the year end. The Company has repaid part of the overdue
balance of Rs 1,783 fakhs and the balance remains outstanding. As per the terms of agreement wilh the lenders,
the Company is fiable to pay penal interest tiif the balances overdue are paid. This being an event of defaull, the
lenders have a right to declare the loan repayable immediately. The lenders have not issued any recall notice yel,
However, considering the terms of the agreement with the lenders and requirement under ind AS 1 ~ Presentation
of Financial statements, the Tull cutstanding balance has been disclosed as current Habitity.

Considering the reasons explained in note 4 (b) above, the Company has not been abie to generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the Joan and is dependent upon the support / financial assistance of Reliance Power Limited, the
Holding Company. The Company is actively engaged with the lenders to restructure {he terms of loan and is
confident of resclution. Accordingly, considering the reason stated in note 4 {b) above, the management's
assessment of probability of restructuring of loan and the Parent Company's support 1o repay the debt and other
obligalions, the Company's financial statements have been prepared as a going concern.




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019 (continued)

6) Confingent liabilities and commimenis

() The Company has declared ite Concentraled-Sclar Power (C5P) plant as commertially operational (GO as pey
lerms of FPA on November 17, 2014 against the scheduled commissioning date (SCD) of Maich 07, 2014 sy par
the leimis of Power Purchase Agresment (PPAY, The Company has filed a pelition befive Oentral Electricity
Regulalory Gomnilssion (CERC) for sxtenglon of SCD. Pleadings in (he said pelition have been complsled and
the matter i 10 be listed for hearing. '

(b As per ihe farms of the PRA enlered with NTPG Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limiled (NVVN), the Company was
reguirad o generale minimum committed ensrgy in the confract year subsequent to declaration of cormmereis!
operation date (GO, The Company has recaived a demand of Rs 8,536 lakhs (as on Mareh 31, 2018 of 23,
#,530 lekhs) towards shorifall in minimum energy supply for peried frem November 17, 2014 (date of GOD as
periha lerms of PPA) to March 31, 2016, The Company has subsequently appioached Delhi Fhigh Court (H
under Section 9 and 11 of Arbitration and Concllialion Acl, 1998 secking interim reiet by regtraining NVVM net
lo dedudt such amourt from amount payable towards nvoices raised for supply of power.

In the hearing held on March 30, 2017, DHC granted stay on recavery of the mininmunt énargy shortlall claim of
NVVN and vide its order dated 1 September 18, 2018, DHC bas disposad off he pelilion dirgcling fhe
Company (o appioach CERC for furher direction in the matier.

Accordingly, the Company has filed petilion before GERC on Noverber 15, 2018, whichis under pleadings
slage,

Moreover, in lhe matter of petitions filed by other CSP developers against the compensalion olaimed by NVVN
due to shorfall in minimum energy supply, CERC has ruled thal NVVYN and the distibution companies arg not
enlitied Lo raise any claim from the CSP developer unkess thay prove thal (hey suffered loss by way of penalty
from the State Eleotricity Regulatory Commission (SERCY on account of non-complisnce of Renewabie
Purchase Obligation (RPO) due to shortfall generation. 1135 10 be noted thal NVUN has ot subrmittad any proof
of claim recetved from any Distribution Company (Discom) on account of penally imposed by respective SERE
on he Discom due to non-compliance of RPO. Further, Rajasthan Electricity Regutatory Comimission, vide it
order dated November 14, 2017 has allowed Rajasihan Discoms 1o meel ils shortfall in REQ by purchasing
renewable energy in next five years without imposing any penalty and same has been confirmed by Rajasthan
discoms vide their letter in response to Right to Information Gquery.

Subsequent 1o grant of stay by DHC, NVVN has been paying against the Invoicas, excapt for an amounl of
R$.3,274 lakhs for which provision has been made, on principle of prudence, in the financial slatements,
Considering the above facts, and as legally advised, the Company has made an assessment of the above
disputes and no further provision Is corsidered necessary. Cash outflows, if any, is dependent upon the
resolution of the above matier.

(c) Eslimated amount of contracts remaining unexecuted on capital account {net of advances paid) and nol
provided for Rs. 300 lakhs (March 31, 2018 Nijy

73 Details of remuneration to auditors:
Rupees in lakhg

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(a) As auditors
For statutory audit* 16 16
For others servicaes - 43
(b} Out-of-pocket expenses @ @

*The above amounts are exclusive of laxes
@ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended Mareh 31, 2018 (continued)

8)

b)

¢}

Employee benefit obligations
The Company has classified various enmiployes benefits as under:
l.eave obligations

The leave abligations cover the Company liability for stk and privileged leave.
Rupees it lakhs

Provision for leave encashment March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current® 13 11
Non-currant 42 32

* The Company does not has uncondilional right to defer the setlements.
Defined contribution plans

(i} Providen fund

(i) Superannuation fund

{liiy Stale defined contribution plans
- Employess’ Pension Scheme 1995

The provident fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by the regionst provident fund commissioner
and the superanhuation fund is administered by the trusi. Under the schemes, the Company is required to cotribite
a specified parcentage of payroll cost 10 1he retirement benefit schemes 1o fund the benefits,

The Company has recognised the following amounts tn the Capital work-in-progress / Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year:

Rupees in lakhs

; Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(i} Contribution to provident fund 13 13
(it Contribution to empioyees’ superannualion fund 2 2
(iii) Contribution to empioyees’ pension scheme 1965 7 1]
{iv} Gontribution to employees’ deposit linked insurance scheme @ 1

Post employment obligation

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit plan in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972, The plan antille an
employees, who has rendered al least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fiffeen days basic
salary for every completed years of services or parl thereof in excess of six monthg, based on the rale of basts salary
last drawn by the employee concerned.

(y Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions

Valuations in respect of gratuity have been carried out by an independent actuary, as at the Balance Sheet date,
based on the following assumptions:

Particutars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Biscount rate {per annum) 7.10% 7.65%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 7.50% 7.50%

The eslimale of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, takes inlo account inflation, senijority,
prometion and other refevant faclors including supply and demand in the employment market.

@ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and Yor the year ended March 31, 2019 {(contimsed)

(i) Balanee sheet amount {(Gratuity Plan)

Particutkars

Balance gs an March 31, 2017

Current service cost

Interast cosl

Total amount recogiiised in profit and loss / Capital
work-in-progress

Remeasuremonts

Retum on plan assets, excluding amount inchyded in
inleres! expense/(ingomea)

(Gatn) / oss from change in demographic assumplions
(Gain / loss from change in inancial assumplions
Experience (gains) / losses

Total amound recognised in other comprehensive
income f Capital work-in-progress

Employer contributions

Benefil paymenls

Balance as on March 31, 2018

Parliculars

Balance as on March 31, 2018

Currend service cosl

Interest cost

Total amount recognised in profit and loss / Capital
WOork-Hi-progress

Remeasurements

Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in
interest expense/(income)

{(CGain) /oss from change in demographic assumplions
(Gain} / loss from change in financial assumplions
Experience (gains) / losses

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive
income f Capital work-in-progress

Employer conlributions

Benelil payments

Bajance as on March 31, 2019

Pregent value of
abligation

47

10

3

13

Present value of
ohligation

(3)
(N

59

Falr value of plar

asuots

The nel liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

Particulars

Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assels

Deficit of gratuity pian

Unfunded plans

Deficit of gratuity pian

March 31, 2019

Rupees in jakhs
March 31, 2018

Rupees in laktis
Net amaunt

47

10

3

13

Rupees in lakhs

Fair value of plan
assets

Nt amount

48
48




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financlat statenients as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

{iii} Bensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the defined beneflil obligetion to changes in the weighted principat agsumptions is

Change tn assurmptions

Particulars Mareh Mareh
31, 2019 31, 2018

Discount rate (0.50% {.60%

Rate of ingrease in

compensation levels 0.50% 0.50%

Iricrease in assumptions

March Mareh
31, 2019 39, 2018
<2, DR% 2. A42%
315% 4.84%

Decrease in agswinpiions

March March
3, 2014 31, 2018
397% 2.64%,
<2 DO% -2 4%

The above sensitivily analyses are based on a change in an assumption whils holding alt other assumplions constanl.
In practice, this is unlikely to oceur, and changes in some of the assumplions may be correlated. When caloutaling the
sensifivily of the defined benefit obligation to significant actugrial assumptions the same method {present value of the
defined henefit obligation calculated with the profected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied as when caleulating the defined beneflt llabllily recognised In the batance sheet. The methods and fypes of
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change comparad to the prior perind,

For unfunded plan, the Company has no compulsion to pre fund the liability of the plan. The Company’s polisy is nof fo
axternally fund these liabilities but inslead recognizes the provision and pay the gratuity to ils employses directly Trom
its own resources as and when the employee leaves the Company.

9) Assets pledged as security

Particulars
Non-gurrent
Financial assets

First charge
Derivative Instruments
Loan

Non-financial assets

First charge

Property, plant and equipment
Capitalt worl¢-in-progress
Other Intangible assets

Other nen-current assets

Total non current assets pledged as security

Current

Financial assets

First charge

Trade receivables

Cash and bank balances
Loans

Other financial assets

Non-financial assets
inventories
Other current assets

Total current assets pledged as security

Total assets pledged as security

March 31, 2019

1,081

110,081
9
5,882

126,047

4,445
612
160
101

518
187
6,023

132,070

Riipees in [akhs
March 31, 2018

2,648
251,408
23
5,894

260,714

5,085
11,015
149
850

240
- 2M
17,5620

278,234




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited _
Notes to the financial statements ag of and for the year anded March 31, 2019 {continued)

10} Related party transactions:
A. Investing Parties/Promoters having significant influence on the Company directly or indirectly

Companies
Rellance Infrastructure Limited (IR infra)

Ingividual
Shiri Anit D, Ambani {Chalrman)

B. Parties where control exists:

Holding Company
Reliance Power Limited (RPower)

G.  Other entities with whom transactions have been done during the year

Fellow subsidiaries:
Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited (DSPL)
Vidharbha Ihdustries Power Limited (VIPL)

B, Details of transactions during the year and closing balance at the end of the year:
Rupees in lakhs
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{i) Transactions during the year:

Reimbursement of experiges and advances by
- R Power 75 190

Material / Service received

- VIPL . 26
Matertal / Service provided

- VIPL - 55
- R infra . 103

Material / Service billed against EPC Contract
- R infra 2,669

Payment of Retention balance
- R Infra 2,200 -

Inter corporate deposit received
- R Powaer 132 13,520




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Emsrgy Private Limited

MNotes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019 (¢ontinued)

March 34, 2049
(iy Closing Balance ;
Equity share capital {excluding prentium)

- R Power 260
Preference share capital {excluding premium)
- R Power 28
Retention payable towards EPC
- Rinfra 3.629
Other current financial Assels
- R infra 101
Other current liabilities
- R Power 265
Advance against EPC contract
- R infra* 5,862
Inter corporate deposit payalile
- R Power 68,142
Guarantees Issued on behalf of the Company

11,471

- R Power

Rupees in
Murch 31

lakhs
, 2018

286

29

5572

100

190

5,884

68,010

11,471

*Represents advance of Rs. 2,200 lakhs given 1o R Infra lowards supply of squinment and balance {s
pertaining 1o tnadjusted advance paid as par terms of EPC Contract which will be adjusled against liability on

provisional takeoverfinal takeover of plant from R Infra {(EPC Coantraclon.

(i) The Holding Company has entered into agreements with the lenders of the Company wherein { has commilted to
extend financial suppod in the form of aquity or debt as per the agreed means of finance, in respact of the project

being undertaken, including hedging suppor, investment supporl and project cost overrun suppofl,

(ivi The above disclosures do nol include {ransactions with public ulility service providers, viz, electricity,

telecommunications in the normal course of business.

(v The Company has enfered into a memorandum of underslanding for sharing of cerlain assets between the

Company and DSPL.

11} Earnings/ (Loss} per share:

Particulars Year onded
March 31, 2018

Profit available to equity shareholders

Net profit afier tax {A) (Rupees in lakhs) (148,518)

Weighted average number of equity shares () 2,856,350

Basic earnings per share (A/B} {{Rupees) (5,199.57)

Weighted average number of polential equity shares on account of conversion 2,856,360

of preference shares (C)

Weighted average number of shares for Dituted EPS{D=8B+C) 5,712,700

Diluted earnings per share (A/D} { Rupees) (5199.57}

10

Nominal value of an equity share {Rupees)

*7.58% compulsory converlible redeemable non-cumulative preference shares had anti-dilutive effect on earnings per share

and have nol been considered for the purpose of computing diluled samings per share.

Year ended
March 31, 2018

(464)
2.856,350
(16.25)
2,856,350

5712700
(16.25)
10




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
MNotes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Gontinued)

12} Income taxes

Thi major components of income tax expense Tor the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are as undar

{a) Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars Mzrch 31, 2019
Income tix expense

Current tax

Current tax on profit for {he year -
income {ax for earlier years 203
Income tax expenses 203

{h} The reconciliation of tax axpense and the accounting profit muliiplied by tax rate :

Particulars March 31, 2019
Profit before {ax (A) {148.315)
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 26% (P.Y. 34.608%) (38,562)

Tax effect of amounis which are nol deduclible{laxable) in
calculating taxable income:

Defarred tax assets not recognised on impairment loss 36,894
Deferred tax assels nof recognised on lax loss for the year 5135
Other adjustments (net) (3,467)
Income lax for earlier years 203
Income tax expense 203

(c) Tax liabilities/ {Assets):

Provision for income tax {advance 1ax) ~ Opeting balances {138}
Taxes paid {het of refund) {256)
Current tax payable for the year -
Income tax for earlier years 203
Excess provision wrillen off

Provision for income tax {advance tax) - Closing balances {189)

{d) Tax losses :

Linused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been

recognised 55,712
Potential Tax benefits @ 26% 14,485

*The Company has not recognized deferred tax assets on carrled forward business losses and unabsorbed depraeciation
as the company does not have reasonable certainly that sufficient future taxable income wili be available against which

deferred tax assets can be realized

Rupeoes in lakhs
March 31, 2018

Rupees in lakhg

March 31, 2018
(454)
(161

161

Rupees in lakhs
292

{(428)
(136)
Rupees in lakhs

385,962
9,350




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended Mareh 31, 2018 {continued)

13) Fair value measuroments

(a) Financial instruments by category

Rupees in kakhs

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Amorlisoed Amortised
FVPL, cost FVPL cout

Financial assols
L.ovans . 164 - 1453
Dervative instrumens 1,081 - 1,489 .
Trade receivables " 4,445 - 5065
Cash and cash squivalents - 328 - 430
Bank depesits with mors than 12 - 283 - 10,586
months maturity
Other receaivablas - 101 - 100
Total financial assels 1,081 5322 1,489 16,333
Financial liabflitfes
Borrowings . 138,330 - 136,990
Other financiat liabifitles . 7,976 - 6,769
Derivatives Liabilifies - >
Total financial liahilities . 146,308 - 143,779

(b) Fair value hierarchy

This section explaing the judgements and estimates made in delermining the fair valuss of the financial instruments that
are (8) recognised and measured al falk value and (b) measured al amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed
in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair valus, the
Company has classiied its financial instruments into (he three levels prescribed under the accounting standard, An
explanation of each level follows undemeath the table,

Rupees in lakhs

Financial assets and Habilities measured at fair value Levet 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

- recurring fair value measurements as at March 31,

2019

Financial assets

Derivatives - 1,081 . 1,081
Total financial assets - ©1,081 - 1,084

Rupees in lakhs
Assets and Habilities which are measured at Level 1 Level 2 L.evel 3 Totai
amortised cost for which fair values are disclose as
at March 31, 2019

Financial assets
Security deposits - - 4 4
Total financial assets N - 4 4

Financial Liabilities

Others financiad liabilities - - 3,529 3,529
Borrowings . 138,330 - 138,330
Total financial liabilities - 138,330 3,529 141,859




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial stalements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

Rupees fi kb

Financial assets and lisbilities measured af faiv value - Level 1 Level 2 Lovet 3 Teotat

recurring fair value measursments as aft March 34, 2018

Financisl assets

Plarivatives 1,488 ~ 1,488

Total financial assoels 1,488 - 1,488
Rupees in lakhs

Assets and liahilties which are measired at amortised Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total

cost for which fair values are disclose as at Maseh 31,

2018

Financial assats

Security deposits 4 4

Total financial assots 4 4

Firnancial Liabilities

Borrowings ~ 141 677 141 677

Total financial liabilities - 141,677 - 141,677

{t) Valuation processes

The Company oblains assistance of indgpendent and compelent third parly valuation experls to perform the valuations of
financial assets and liahilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are hald between the Company and the valuer on periodically basis.

Discount rales are delermined using & capilal assel pricing model to calculade a pre-lax rate thal reflects current marke
assessments of the time value of money and 1he risk specific to the agseat,

(dy Fair value of financial agsets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount
Financial Agsets
Security deposils 4 4 4 4
Total financial assets 4 4 4 4
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings* 138,330 138,330 136,990 141,677
Other financial iabiities 3529 3.629 “ -
Total financial liabilities 141,859 141,859 136,990 141,677

*Carrying amount of borrowing includes tong term borrowing, current maturity of long term borrowing and interest accrued
but not due onh borrowing.

** The fair value as of March 31, 2019 is considered to be equal to canying amount due to reasons staled in note 5

The carrying amount of current financial assets and liabilities {other than current maturity of long term borrowing and
interest acerued but not due on borrowing which have been considered as parl of borrowing) are considerad 1o be the
same as their fair values, due to their shorl term nature.

The fair value as of March 31, 2018 of the long-term Borrowings with floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to
interest rate changes, and will nat be significantly different from their carrying amounts as there Is no significant change in
the under-lying credit risk of the Company borrowing {since the date of inception of the Inans).

For financial assets and liabilities thal are measures at fair value, the carrying amount is equal to the fair values,




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limitod
Notes to the findncial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

Note

level 1 Level 1 higrarchy includes finaocial instroments megsured using guoted prices,

Lavel 2: The fair value of financiat instruments thal are not traded in an active miarke! (for example over-the-cournier
derivatives) is determined using veluation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as il
ag possibie on entlily-specific entimates, IF alt slonificant inputs reguited o falr vahie an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in lavel 2.

Level 3 If one or more of the sigiificant inputls is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3. This is the case Tor unlislsd equity securilies which are included in level,

There were nio transfers between any levals during the year.

The Company’s policy is 1o recoghise transfer into and transfer out of fair valug higrarchy levels as at the end of The
reporting periog.

14} Financial risk management
The Company's business activities expose il 1o a varicty of financial rsks, namely lquidity risk, market risks and credit

risk.
Rigk Exposure arising from Measurensent Management
Credit Risk Cash and cash egoivalents, rade Aging analysis Only high rated
recaivablis and financial assets banksfinslitutions are
measured at amortised cost, accepted.
Licquiclity Risk Borrowings and other liabilites Rolling cash flow forecasts  Avallabiity of committed credit
lines and borrowing facililies
Marked risk - Recognised financial assels and Sensilivity analysia Parlly hedge by foreign
foreign exchange  liabilities nol denominated in indian exchange forward, tross
rupae (INR) currency and call spread
contract
Market risk — Long-term borrowings al variable SensHivity analysis Partly hedge by Inlerest rale
interest rate rafes swap

(a) Credit risk

The Company is exposed 1o oredit rigk, which is the risk that counterparly will default on its contractual obligation
resulting in a financtal loss to the Company. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, inancial assety
carried al amoriised cost and deposits with banks and financial institlutions, ag well as credit exposures to trade
customers lowards sale of electricity as per the terms of PPA, CERC and with public sector undertakings.

Credit risk management
Credit risk is managed at Company level depending on the policy surrcunding credit risk management. For banks
and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted. Generally ali policies surrounding credit risk

have been managed at Company level except for those surrounding accounts receivabie balances.

The Company has a PRA with a large public limited Company. The credit risk is considered io be low. The procurer
has been paying the dues on a timely basis duwing the year.

(b} Liquidity risk
(i) Managemenl monifors the relling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash
equivalenis on the hasis of expected cash flows. As the Company does not have sufficient operational cash
iflows the Company is largely dependent now upon the parent company's support (Refer note 5 above).
{ii} Maturities of financial liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equat their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is nol significant.

g PR TV




March 31, 2019

Non-derivatives Financial liabilities

Borrowings® (Refer note 5)
Creditors for capital expendiure
Retention money payable

Dues 1o Holding Companies

Other financial liabilities
Total Non-derivatives Financial
Habilities

March 31, 2018

Non-derivatives Financial liabilities
Borrowings”

Creditors for capital expendilure
Retention money payable

[Dues to Holding Companies

Other financial liabilities
Total Non-derivatives Financial
liabilities

Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Liniiied
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 {continued)

Less than 1
YEars

140,440
394
3,688
265
3,630

148,415

Less than 1
years

18,068
709
5,688
190
162

24,858

Between 1 yeaar
anid 5 yeais

Between 1 year
and § years

69,860

69,660

Mere than 5

More than &

Rupees in kakhs
yoars Testal
140, 440
a4
3,686
2G5
3,620

- 148,415

Rupees in lakhs

years Total
94,458 182,187
- 709
- 5 6ol
180
192
94,458 168,976

“Includes contractual interest payments based on the interest rate prevalling at the reporiing date.

{c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuale because of
volatility of prices in the financial markels. Market risk can be further segregated as: a) Foreign currency risk and

b) Interest rate risk.

(i} Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk 1hal the fair value of future cash flows of a finandial instrument will fluctuaie
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has long term monetary liabilities which are in
currency other than its functional cuarrency. Foreign currency risk, as defined in Ind AS 107, arises as the value of
recoghised monetary assels and monetary labilities denominated in other currencies fluctuate due 1o changes in

foreign exchange rates.

While the Company has direct exposure 1o foreign exchange rale changes on the price of non-indian Rupee-
denominated borrowings. For that reason, the below sensitivity analysis may not necessarily indicate the tolal
effect on the Company’s nel assets atiributable to holders of equily shares of future movements in foreign

exchange rates.

» Foreign currency risk exposure:

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk (all in USD $) at the end of the reporling pericd expressed in

INR, are as foliows.

Financial Habilities
Borrowings

Retention mongy

Total Financial liabilities
Covered by Derivative
Forward contracts

Call spread

Cross Currency Swap

Total Covered by derivatives

--Met cuposure to-forsign-curreney gk~ -

March 31, 2049

132,246
2,629
134,875

12,451

12,451

ey

Rupees in lakhs
March 31, 2018

130,430
2472
132,902

3,132
13,659
7,470
24,261

A0BBAT.. e



Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statemems as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019 {confinued)

«  BensHivity of foreign currency exposire

The sensitivily of profil or lose to changes in the exchangs rales arises mainly from loreign aurency denominaled
financiat instrumenis,

impact on profit before tax /
Capital worksin- progress®
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018

LSD sensitivity
FX rate - increase by 6% on closing rate on reporting date® (7 533 (6,991)
FX rate~ decrease by 6% on closing rate on reporting date ® 7,396 6.842

“ Holding alt other variables constan

*The above impacl has been assessed taking iito consideration 1he accounting policy adopted by the Compainy
for the accouniing for foreign exchange differences, (Refer nole 2.1(m) above).

{it) Interest rate risk

The Company's maln interest rate risk anses from long-term borrowings wilh variable rates, which expose the
Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During March 31, 2016 the Company's borrowings at variable rate
were mainly denominaled in USDL

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried al amortised cost. They are therefore not subject 10 interes!
rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since rieither the cartying amount nor the filure cash flows will Alucluaie
becatise of a change in market interest rales.

» Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to inlerest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as

tollows:
Rupees in lakhs
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Variable rate borrowings 57,349 567,252

= Sensitivity of Interest
Profit or loss is sensitive to higherlower interest expense from borrowings as a resull of changes in interest rales.

Rupees in lakhs
impact on profit hefore tax /
Capital work-in- progress

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

tnterest rates - increase by 5% on existing Interest cost® {189 (178)
Interest rates -- decrease by 5% on existing interest cost” 188 178
* Holding alt other variables consiant

15} Capital Management

(a} Risk Management

The Company's abjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern m order o provide returns for sharehoiders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure 1o reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjus! the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharehoiders, return capilal to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce delt. (Refer note 5 above)




Rajasthan Bun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial siatements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

The Gompany monilorg capital on basis of total equity and debt on a perodic basis. Equily comiprises all GOMmponets
of equity inchides the fair value impact. The following lable summarizes the capital of the Company;

March 31, 2016

Rupees in lakhs
March 31, 2018

Eepatty {exeluding other reserves) {15,209) 133,175

Debt 136 240 135,447

Total 124,081 268,622
16) Seyment reporiing

Presailly, the Caimpany is engagad in only one segment viz 'Generalion of Power' and ag such there is no separais
reportable segren as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segmants’. Prasently, he GComparny's operations arg predominantly
cordingd in India, The Company's Board of Directors are chiefl aparating decision makers of the Company, '

Information about major customers

Ravenue for the year ehdied Margh 31, 2018 and March 31,

2018 were from customers localed in Ingia, Cusiomers

inclde privale distibution entities. Revenue lo spedilic cuslomers exceeding 10% of tolal ravenue for the yesrs
ended March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2018 were as Tollows {rofer note 2(n)():

March 31, 2019
Revenue In lakhs
8377

NTPC Vidyul Vyapar Nigam Limited

17} Exchange Difference on Long Term Monetary ltems

March 31, 2018
Parcent  Revenue In lakhs Peroernt
100% 10,438 100%

As exprained above in note 2.1(m) with respect lo exchange differences, the Company has adjusted the value of
Capital work-in-progress by Rs. 14,819 lakhs (Joss) and has adjusied the value of Rs 6,475 lakhs gain in PRPE
(March 31, 2018 is Rs. 335 lakhs (loss) towards the exchange difference arising on long term foreign currency

monelary labilities towards depreciable assets.

18) The information for Sell- generaled Cerlified Emission Reductions {CERS) relating to certified emisaion rfights are as

follows: -

Sr. Particulars

No.

a) Na. of CERs held as invenlory and the
basis of valuation

) No. of GERs under cettiflication

c) Depreciation and operating and

maintenance costs of Emission Reduction
equipment expensed during the year

For the year ended

For the year ended
March 31, 2019 Warch 31, 2018

69,671 82,718

19) Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006" has been determined based on the information available with the Company and the required

disclosure are given below.

Rupees in lakhs
For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

{a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of

the accounting year (refer note 3.17)

19 .

{(b) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the

end of the accounting year @
{c )The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 18, along with the

amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

dunng the year -

{dyThe amount of interest due and payabie for the year -
(e)The amourt of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of

the accounting year @
{fyThe amount of further interast due and payable even in the

succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are

actually naid. RO e g g R e e £ i e s+ s e ot e

@ Amount is below the roundmg off norm adopted by the Company
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Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes (o the financial statermnents as of and for the year ended Maich 31, 2019 (continned)

20} Offsedting of financial aszets and financial liabilities

The: follawing lable pressnts the derivalive financial instrumenlg hal are offaet as at March 31, 2019 and, Mareh 31,

2018 whare as per (he lerms of (e agréement the net position owing / receivable (o a single counterparty in 1he sarme

curreincy has bean offsetied and presemed at nat amount in the balance sheoat,

Particulars

As at March 34, 2019
Financial Liabifities
Derivative Liabitities

Total Financial Liabilities
Financial Assets
Devivalive Assels

Total Financial Assets

As at March 34, 2018
Financial Liabilities
Darivalive Liabilitics

Total Financial Liabilities
Financial Assets
Derivalive Assels

Total Financial Assets

21) Net debt reconciliation

Gross dmounts

1,081
1,081

(491)
(491)

1,979
1,979

Rupees in fakhs
Net balance
pragented in balance

Grosy amount sett-
off in batance sheet

shaet
“ 1,081
- 4,081
491 .
491 -
(491} 1 ABE
{491} 1,488

Rupees in lakhs

Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31,2019  March 31,2018
Borrowings
Opening Balance
- Non Current 124 664 134,650
- Current 10,783 10,554
Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effective Rate of Interest aGe 390
- Exchange {gain} / loss 8,145 326
Repaid during the year/period {7,670 (10473
Closing Balance
~ Non Current - 124,664
- Current {Refer note 5) 136,280 10,783
Inter corporale deposit
Opening Balance 68,010 54,490
Availed dunng the year 432 14,570
Repaid during the year {300} {1,060)
Closing Bafance 68 142 G68.010
interest Expenses
interest accrued bul not due on borrowings (Opening) 1,543 1478
tnterest Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss / Capital work in progress 8,571 9,001
Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effective Rate of Inierest {388) {390)
limpact of MTM Derivalive valualion 448
Interesl paid to Lenders (77086) (8,992}
Interest accrued bul not due/ and due on borrowings (Closing) 2,040 1,543

22) The figures for the previous year are re-classified / re-grouped, wherever considered necessary.

e g e R o L SRR SR

k

L L N S % £ e L e



3
:
i
|
|
|
i

Rajasthan Sun Technigue Ensrgy Private Limited

Ag per our report of even dale

For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No: 301112 E
Charlered Accountants

Piyiish Jalandhara Shrikant D Kulkarni
Partner Director
Membership No. 122351 DN Number: 05136380

Mantu Kumar Ghosh
[irector
DIN Number 076844888

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : June 07, 2018 Date : June {7, 2019




